United Nat'lg[](s 1/ bl _ AJc.6/54/5R 14

(@)
\\4 )\// Fifty-fourth session 10 November 1999
S

=7 Official Records Original: English

Sixth Committee

Summary record of the 14th meeting
Held at Headquarters, New York, on Friday, 22 October 1999, at 3 p.m.

Chairman Mr. MochochOoKO . ... ... (Lesotho)

Contents

Agenda item 158: Establishment of an international criminal caorit(nued

This record is subject to correction. Corrections should be sent under the signature of a member of the
delegation concernedithin one week of the date of publicatitinthe Chief of the Official Records
Editing Section, room DC2-750, 2 United Nations Plaza, and incorporated in a copy of the record.

Corrections will be issued after the end of the session, in a separate nourgér each Committee.

99-81830 (E)



A/C.6/54/SR.14

The meeting was called to order at 3.15 p.m. and its early realization was a collective responsibility for
all.

Agenda item 158: E_stablishment of aninternational g5 s, Semambo-KalemaUganda) drew attention to
criminal court (contmu*ed (PCNICC/1999/L.3/Rev.1, ihe advances in the progressive development of
L.4/Rev.1 and L.4/Rev.X(French only); A/54/98) international law that had been achieved on the threshold
1. Mr. Wenaweser (Liechtenstein) said that theofthe new millennium and said that the adoption of the
adoption of the Statute ofthe International Criminal Cou&tatute of the International Criminal Court had been a
had been a historic step and welcomed the good resunigjor milestone. The establishment of the Court would go
achieved during the first two sessions of the Preparatdgryong way to ensuring that those who committed grievous
Commission. Nevertheless, further effort would be requir@imes against humanity did not escape punishment,
to meet the deadline of June 2000 for the finalization dfiereby reaffirming the rule of law. She looked forward to
work onthe Elements of Crimes and the Rules of Procedutee time when heinous crimes in addition to crimes against
and Evidence. Continued high priority should also be givdrumanity, genocide and war crimes would be brought
to the International Criminal Court process. under the Court’s jurisdiction.

2. Progress had been achieved in a professional @hd The work to bring the long-desired Criminal Court
businesslike atmosphere, as compared with the emotionafi{o operation was scheduled for completion by 30 June
charged climate of Rome, possibly a sign of an evolving000. Her delegaticattached greatimportance to the work
broader acceptance of th@ute. The deficiencies of someof the Preparatory Commission, which sought to
provisions were irrelevant when compared to the unig@ggcommodate various legal systems, and believed that
achievement of the Statute as a whole, and its integrRglequate time and resources should be allocated to the
should be maintained. The Rules of Procedure ag@mmission to enable it to continue its work.

Evidence and the Elements of Crimes should nottherefore  agthe Preparatory Commission carried out its work,

restrict the Court's ability to interpret applicablesiates should recall their obligation to sign and ratify the
international law in accordance with the letter and spir§iatyte. since neglecting to do so would mean that their
of the Statute. efforts had been wasted. Although 88 States had signed the
3. The most important expression of political suppo@tatute, only four had ratified it to date, and 60
for the Court was the signature and ratification of theatifications were required for its entryinto force. Uganda
Statute. Its early entry into force was a major goal, and th@d signed the Statute on 17 March 1999 and was working
developments thus far were encouraging. Ratification tf complete theinternal procedures for its ratification, and
the Statute was a complex process which would beshe urged other States that had not yet done so to do
considerable burden for many Governments. Liechtenstéikewise. Her delegation had participated in the briefing
had signed the Statute when it had been opened f&gssions on ratification and implementation legislation
signature in Rome and hoped to complete the ratificatidvosted by the International Human Rights Law Institute of
process by the end of 2000. De Paul University and Parliamentarians for Global Action
31 July and 7 August 1999 at United Nations

. . .on
4. One important characteristic of the Statute was 'ﬁieadquarters and had found them to be very useful.

preventive potential. The long unchallenged practice o
impunity had suffered a number of major and welcom®  She thanked those countries that had contributed to
setbacks in the recent past, and an effective latewnal the trust fund established to facilitate the participation of
Criminal Court would be the most important contributiorihe least developed countries in the work of the Preparatory
to terminating it. It was increasingly understood that theommission. Her delegation pledged its continued support
root causes of armed conflicts — particularly interndpthe Preparatory Commission as it discharged its mandate
ones — were complex and could include patterns ahdhopedthatthe spiritof cooperation and understanding
violations of human rights and crimes such as those ded@monstrated during the Rome Conference would continue
with in the Statute. Thus the prevention of such conflict® prevail.

was not only the most efficient, but sometimes the only . Adamhar (Indonesia) said that the post-cold-
viable, way to deal with situations that threatenegar period had contributed to an escalation of tension and
international peace and security. Seen in that context, g4 paved the way for the emergence of ethnic nationalism
International Criminal Court was of unique importancep g fragile nation. Violent and grievous crimes continued



A/C.6/54/SR.14

to plague the global scene, and national judicial systerfts States to honour their commitments and obligations
and international cooperation had often been insufficienhder international law. However, further steps had to be
to deal with them. taken to fulfil the mandate of the Rome Conference.

10. It was to be hoped that the International CriminlﬁeSpite the complexity of_the_ issues under consideration
Courtwould be a permanent judicial mechanismto ens gthe Prep_aratory Comm|s_3|_on, she hoped th_at the_ States
the advancement of justice at the international Ievé’ffo_u_ld continue to work eff!mently and e_ffegnvely Ina
Indonesia had actively participated in the entjrSPIrit of compromise to achieve those objectives.

preparatory process, including both sessions of ti®. An internationally agreed definition of the crime of

Preparatory Commission, and was continuing its carefaggression in the Statute would make the Court’s
consideration ofthe Statute, which it hoped to dissemingtgisdiction complete and offer a powerful deterrent to the
to the entire Indonesian population. illegitimate use of force by States. She therefore welcomed
g}e Preparatory Commission’s decision to establish a

11. Universal participation should be the cornerstone ) . .
yvorkmg group on the crime of aggression.

the Court so that it would not fall prey to narrow politica
agendas. The Court should be a product of mutua6. Completion of the Rules of Procedure and Evidence
cooperation among all nations regardless of differencesand the Elements of Crimes must go hand in hand with
political, economic, social or cultural systems. Equallgfforts to universalize aeptance of the Court. For
important was the need to observe the precepts embod&dvenia, ratification of the Statute was an important
in the Charter of the United Nations, including consenhuman rights priorityand an internal legislative procedure
impartiality, non-discrimination, State sovereignty andas taking place to ensure the compatibility of the Court’s
territorial integrity. Interational law was based on the will Statute with the Slovenian Constitution. Onceratified, the
of sovereign States todevelop binding legal rules to gove&tatute would have direct applicabilityin the Slovene legal
inter-Staterelations, but such norms could only be bindimystem, owing to the constitutional principle of the
when States gave their consent to be bound. supremacy of international law. The ecessary

12. Theprincipleofcomplementaritywasofparamouri'inplementing legislation ~would be adopted after

importance, as the Court was intended to supplement arrz?@flcanon had. tak_en plage qnd the Penal Code would be
not supplant national jurisdiction. It should thereforé‘mende‘j t(.) bring '.t fully in line .W'th the Statute as well
exercise jurisdiction only with the consent of the Stated® current |nternat|or_1al_ humanltana_n law st.a_ndallrds. As
concerned, and refrain from handling cases that w nyStates shared S|m|larconcerﬂﬂ_megtmanflcanon
alreadybefore national courts. The Court must not becorﬂreocedures, she welcomed the regional cpnferences and
a mechanism for interfering in State’s internal affairs blworkshops that had been held on that subject.

should fulfil its central objective of facilitating 17. Mr. Kuindwa (Kenya) said that the adoption of the
international cooperation and deterring the perpetrati®tome Statute had been a milestone in the progressive
of heinous acts. To function, the Court must have a cledevelopment of international law. It was particularly
understanding of what constituted a specific crime, and bacouraging that 89 countries, including Kenya, had
therefore supported the convening of working groups tdready signed that instrument, and he urged those
reach a consensus on the definition of aggression atalntries that had not yet signed it to do so. Kenya was
related issues. taking the necessary steps for earlyratification, and hoped

13. Indonesia hoped that the work of the Preparato}@at other delegations would do the same.

Commission would be carried outin a spirit of cooperatioh8. Kenya’'s experience in cooperating with the
and pragmatism. The adoption of the Statute should notlloéernational Criminal Tribunal for Rwanda had shown
a reason to disregard the concerns of States that had thett it was possible to cooperate with such a court even
yet signed and ratified it. without major changesin legislation. He therefore foresaw

14. Ms. Pipan (Slovenia) said that the adoption of thd© major problem in Kenya’s ability to cooperate with the

Statute had been a historic breakthrough in internatioﬂﬁfernat'on.al Cfnmm;! igurt. |f_“S delegatlon recognized
law. The International Criminal Court would be ant e necessity of establishing a forum where perpetrators of

essential pillar of an emerging system of internation [imes which adversely affected not only the warring

justice and a powerful tool to address and deter t %ctions but also neighbouring countries could be brought

commission of serious crimes against humanity. TH8Iustice.
Court’'s complementary nature would provide an incentive



A/C.6/54/SR.14

19. At its most recent session the Preparatotfie commission of other serious crimes prohibited by
Commission had completed less than half of its workaternational law. Ad Hoc tribunals did not play a
Additional meetings should therefore be scheduled in ordareventive role. His delegation hoped that the discussion
to allow the Commission to complete its work by then the matter would be solely of a legal nature.

deadline of June 2000. Itwas.essential tocompleteboththe  11q statute’s effectiveness would largely depend on
Rules of Procedure and Evidence and the Elementsigf |oyel of support eceived from the intemtional
Crimes, giving priority to the definition of the crime Ofcommunity, and efforts should continue to ensure the

aggression, which was relevant to the very spirit of thgijest possible participation, while maintaining the

Statute. A compromise solution on that sensitive iss‘iﬂ‘?tegrity of the Statute

could surely be worked out without eroding the core of the

crime itself. All those issues should be dealt with as sogp- Mr. Bakoniarivo (Madagascar) said itwas generally
as possible in order to create an atmosphere conducivéf§nowledgedthatthe adoption of the Statute had required
universal acceptance of theaSute. compromises of all States. He therefore welcomed the

c?nstructive atmosphere and spirit of cooperation that had
. I_-Ie _appealed to the_ relevant NON-governMentay, yed the debate in the Preparatory Commission. Despite
organizationsto extendtheir supporttoKenya'’s subregi

s R . e difficulty inherentin harmonizing the requirements of
so that political, moral and social will could be mobilize ifferent legal systems, much progress had been made
in support of early ratification of the Statute. He alsglthough much still remained to be done. He urged

appef”"ed to the developed countries and_ _othgrs &Qlegationsto continue to endeavour to accommodate the
contribute to the trust fund to ensure the participation Qf -\ o< of others

theleast developed countriesin the work ofthe Preparator%/ ) ) )
Commission. 26. Given the June 2000 deadline, completion of work

, ) i on the Rules of Procedure and Evidence and on the
21. Mr. Ogonowski (Poland) said that adoption of theg e ments of Crimes constituted the major challenge before
Rome Statute had greatly reinforced the existing systempf, prenaratory Commission. The international seminar
safeguards againstthe abuses of universal legal NOrMS A4 in Paris on victims'@ess to the Court and the inter-

the end of a century that had witnessed unprecedeniglqiona meeting at Siracusa, Italy, were valuable in
human suffering approached, the need to develop a NEW,

X thering the Commission’s work.
culture characterized by respect for the rule of law was -
more apparent than ever, given that the world continuéd- For some States, ratification of the Statute was

to witness widespread violations of legal norms an@ePendent on the adoption of a definition of the crime of
standards. aggression. That matter and all other outstanding issues

) must therefore be settled by the scheduled deadline. He
,22' The signature of the Statu'te by ne'a.rly _90 Stat%(elcomed the many proposed definitions that had been
including Poland, was encouraging. Ratification was bmitted by States and believed that a working group
more complex process, however, and Poland was curre ould be established to consider them, taking as its basis

analysing the Statute in order to identify any provision[ﬁe definition contained in GenerAssembly resolution
thatwould require changesin the country’s domestic Ieg%14 (XXIX)

system. The Polish Criminal Code already containe

specific provisions relating to genocide, aggression, crim@§-  He expressed his delegation’s appreciation for the
against humanity and war crimes. assistance provided to enable the least developed countries

o to participate in the work of the Preparatory Commission.
23. The significant progress made by the Preparator

Commission was reassuring, and the goal for completié®- While Madagascar was firmly committed to the
of the work on the Rules of Procedure and Evidence aggtablishmentofthe International Criminal Court, it faced
the Elements of Crimes seemed to be within reach. TH®al and constitutional problems that must be resolved
Commission should hold two three-week sessions in 2088fore it could ratify the Statute. His Government was
prior to the June deadline and one thereafter to begin wdiing serious consideration to the possibility of revising
on other documents. One difficult task would be to considé€ Constitution in order to make that possible, and he
the definition of aggression and the terms of the Court&couraged other States that had not yet signed or ratified
jurisdiction over that crime. A clear message should BB€ Statute to do so as soon as possible.

given that aggression was prohibited by international Iag0. Ms. Ramoutar (Trinidad and Tobago), speaking on
and was also a punishable crime, as it frequently precedsshalf of the States members of the Caribbean Community



A/C.6/54/SR.14

(CARICOM) that were members of the United Nationsgeneral principles of international law, and that task must
welcomed the broad participation of the internationdle tackled as a matter of priority.

cr?mmumtym theworkofthe Prre]_pz:]rar'[]oryCommlsslon i% If the rules governing the court were not established
the constructive manner in which the Commission ha 5 hositive spirit, their ultimate impact would be

proceeded during its first two sessions. The inséimmal . qiderably reduced. As ancient African societies well
seminar on V|c_t|ms’ ecess to the Court and the 'mer'knew, rules did not lead to a better world if their
sessional meeting at Siracusa, Italy, had been helpful i yeriying spirit was not positive. His delegation was also
advancing the work of the Commission. concerned that the Statute should be universal. However,
31. In March 1999, legal experts from 10 CARICOMuniversality was difficult to achieve given the existence of
member States had met in Port-of-Spain at ttseveral different legal systems. The Preparatory
Intergovernmental Regional Caribbean Conference for tR@mmission should therefore take the time needed to
signature and ratification of the Rome Statute of thensure that consensus was reached.

International Criminal Court. Implementation legislation;
and ratification procedures had been discussed agﬁgi
Conference participants haddeclaredtheircommitmenti{gm' as its position on the establishment of the

ensuring the mtggnty of Fhe Statute .an.d Lo pursuing e rnational Criminal Court was well known. However,
ratification in their respective States within the shorte%Ii1 the previous day, a new Cabinet had been formed in his

possible time. While internal parliamentaryproceduresf%umry which included representatives of former rebel
signature or ratifiation were frequentlylengthy, theywere

, . roups, all political parties and civil society as well as
nevertheless under way in several Caribbean States, :i%q P P P y

H dalls hat had ned i gj)viduals with no party allegiance. While it was widely
sheencouragedall Statesthathad notyetsigne or_ratl wn thatthe rebel groupsin SierraLeone had committed
the Statute to endeavour to do so as early as possible.

atrocities, the inclusion of those groups in the new
32. Mr. Traore (Burkina Faso) commended the report&overnment did not imply support for those acts. It was
on the work of the Preparatory Commission. thus in the light of that development that his delegation
a\gshed to address the Committee.

Mr. Kanu (SierralLeone) said that his delegation had
nally not intended to make a statement on the agenda

33. Hisdelegation hoped that the rules that would gui
the Court’s functioning would never be misusedinthewa8. African civilians continued to bear the brunt of war
that some other instruments of international law had beerimes, genocide and crimes against humanity. The
used by some States. The creation of a supranatiomdkrnational community’s efforts to make the International
jurisdiction should not target criminals in some StatdSriminal Court a reality were therefore to be welcomed.
while ignoring those in others; court judgements must bdis delegation was aware of the herculean tasks that lay
applicable to criminals from all countries. Furthermoreghead and, in the light of experience in Sierra Leone, had
the Elements of Crimes must not include any descriptiostrong views concerning the definition of the crime of
or wording that was inconsistent with the fundamentalggression. Nevertheless, it would not allow emotion to
rules of international law. If a group of States sought tetand in the way of any consensus or compromise that
appropriate the Court for its own use, the efforts of thaight be reached on that subject, but looked forward to
international community would have been in vain. cooperating with the working group in a constructive

34. While his delegation fully supported thgnanner.

establishment of the Court, it did not expect that th&9. States had a legal, moral and political imperative to
institution would be able to solve all problems. Asupportthe early establishment of the Court, and he urged
disturbing phenomenon of particular concern in thatll delegations to impress on their Governments the need
connection was the arms trade, and his Governmdntsign and ratify the Statute in order to send a clear
believed thatthose who grewrich from trading in weapomsessage tothe perpetrators of heinous crimes such asthose
or other means of perpetrating genocide must be classifiwidnessed in his own countrythat they could nolonger hide
as criminals. with impunity. While his Government had thus far been

35. His delegation was also concerned by efforts R{evented from ratifying the Statute because of repeated

prevent the Preparatory Commission from defining tr{gbel invasions, the arrival of peace in the country had

crime of aggression, the most serious of all crimes. Tﬁ‘gade that step possible.
elements of such a definition were alreadycontainedin td8. Mr. Chowdhury (Bangladesh) said that his
delegation was participating in the work of the Preparatory



A/C.6/54/SR.14

Commission in the conviction that the Internationatommitment to the rule of law as a means of ensuring
Criminal Court would promote human rights all over thpeace and security and of punishing and preventing the
world, although it must be universallg@pted and have crimes falling within the Court’s jurisdiction.

independent authority to enforce its verdicts if it was to bgg Bulgaria had signed the Statute on 11 Febri299:1

effective. Bangladesh attached particularimportance to {hg, e ver, ratification would depend on legislative changes
Courtbecause the country had been the victim of genocigley, e gyigarian Criminal Code and Code of Criminal

during its war of liberation in 1971. Procedure. While existing provisions ofthe Criminal Code
41. The Prime Minister of Bangladesh had personalbpnformed to a great extent with the provisions of the
signed the Statute in New York one month previously arRbme Statute, total conformity was required. It was
had indicated her country’s commitment to the principlespected that all theacessary changes could be made by
of the Court. The Government of Bangladesh hatie end of the year 2000.

emparked upon the rat|f|c_at|on process, which ra's%fdl. Her delegation attached greatimportance tothe work
difficult technical and legal issues. Bangladesh and othgy,, Preparatory Commission on the Rules of Procedure

least developed countries might well require technicgj, e \ijence and the Elements of Crimes. It welcomed the
cooperation to complete the ratification process and {gificant results produced during the Commission’s first
implementthe Statute in the future, and his delegation w, sessions and hoped that the Commission would
gratefultothosedelegationsthathadof'feredtoshareth(%rntinue its work in a spirit of compromise and

expertise in the area of implementation legislation. understanding, in order to be able to complete it promptly.

42. He.expressed satisfaction with th_e vyork of the firgly s, Efrat-Smilg (Israel) said that, given the history
two sessions of the Preparatory Commission and thankggy e jewish people in the twentieth century, Jewish jurists
the contributors to the trust fund which had enabled leagl j statesmen had been among the first to advocate the
developed countries to participate in the Commissionggaplishment of an international criminal court. Her
work. However, the trust fund was now depleted, thyg|eqation firmly believed that the heinous crimes referred

preventing universal participation in the establishment P(_f) in the Rome Statute were a menace to all and should be
a court. dealt with by the international community as a whole.

43. Withregard tothe Preparatory Commission’s futurgy Only because her delegation attached the utmost

work, his delegation believed that the Rules ofProceduir ortance to the establishment of the Court had it
and Evidence and the Elements of Crimes mUS”eSpECtgégressed some concerns with regard to the Statute. It

letter and spirit of the Rome Statute to ensure the effecti Bubted, for example, that the crime of transfer of civilian
functioning of the Court. The Elements of Crimes shoul

) o 4 ) opulations, referred to in article 8, paragraph 2 (b) (viii),
contam_ qlear Qeflnltlons and take mternathn. eserved to be ranked with some of the other genuinely
humanltgrlan Iawmto account. Hewelc;omed thedec's,”mainous war crimes listed in that article. In defining the
to gstabhsh a Work|ng group on the crime Of_ ag9ressiofements of that crime, it should be borne in mind that the
which was a serious V|0I.at|on of the principles of th%hapeau ofarticle 8, paragraph 2 (b), categorized itamong
Charter of the United Nations. the “serious violations of the laws and customs applicable
44, There was a need for dissemination of informatian international armed conflict, within the established
on the Statute and the work of the Preparatofyjamework of international law”. International law
Commission. In that connection he recognized theertaining tothe crime of transfer was based on article 49
important ongoing role played by the NGOdlidon for of the Fourth Geneva Convention. Consequently, one
the Establishment of an International Criminal Cournecessary element of the crime should be that the transfer
whose efforts would be important in securing theas in violation of that provision.

ratifications needed for the Court to become operation%IO Moreover, the addition at Rome of the phrase

45, Ms. Todorova (Bulgaria) said that her delegation“directly or indirectly” to article 8, paragraph 2 (b) (viii),
aligned itself with the views expressed by thefthe Statute had no basisinthe established framework of
representative of Finland on behalf ofthe European Unioimternational law, but could onlybe explained as politically
As an associated country, Bulgariashared the commitmenotivated. The phrase could not alter the nature of the
of European Union member States to the early entry intdfence in the context of the chapeau’s requirement that it
force of the Rome Statute of the International Criminalhould be interpreted within the established framework of
Court, whichwould confirm the international community’snternational law, nor could it change the sense of



A/C.6/54/SR.14

involuntariness implicit in the term “transfer” in thatdecision of States to sign and ratify the Court’s Statute.
context. The Statute must not be abused for political endshe aim was to ensure that the Court would try all
The Court was too important for the internationainternational criminals without exception, and it was
communitytoallowitto be blemished by political agendagherefore crucial to remain faithful to the letter and spirit

51. Mr. Edmond (Haiti) said that the adoption of theOf the Rome Statute and eschew any attempts to refine or

Rome Statute showed the international communityasmend It

determination to call a halt to the reign of terror an87. Definingthe crime ofaggressionwasmoreimportant
impunity. The need for the Court was incontestable in tltban determining the elements of crimes, since aggression
light of recent atraities, yet 15 months after its adoptionconstituted the basis of the other crimes over which the
only 88 States had signed it and only four had ratified i€ourt exercised jurisdiction. He hoped that the significant
offeps which the Preparatory Commission had taken to

compatibility with national laws, which meant that Somgddressthe issueW(_)uId facilitate_aspeed_yresolution_ ofthe
countries would have to amend their domestic legislatio atter, as States might feel hesitant to sign and ratify the

His delegation welcomed the offer of the European Unid tatute, unless the crime was clearly defined. Conversely,

to place its expertise at the service of developing countrig‘lke Court could pe establ.lshed without determining the
in that regard. elements of all crimes, which were already well known, or

formulating highly detailed rules of procedure and
53. Hisdelegation steadfasthaintained thatthe Statuteevidence; trust should be placed in the ability of the judges
should always prevail over the Rules of Procedure arfithe Court to deal with unforeseen situations. A special
Evidence and the Elements of Crimes, which were to bgreement should also be concluded between the Security
elaborated only as accessory rules to assist the CourtdBuncil and the Court for subsequent annexation to the
interpreting the Statute. In defining the elements ofcrimeRome Statute with a view to determining clearly the

his delegation was in favour of a succinct core of elemendgistence of a strong relationship between them that was
like those found in Roman and German law. Four elemerdgyoid of political considerations.

were sufficient for determining the existence of an offence;
a material element, a legal element, a moral element aﬁ%‘
an element of intent. A plethora of elements would mere
complicate the judge’s task.

52. Ratification of the Statute depended greatly

The proposal which his and other delegations had
bmitted on the crime of aggression
(PCNICC/1999/DP.11) and which had received
considerable support, was built on the definition of the
54. Haiti was particularly interested in the work Oltrime contained in General Assemb|y resolutiRBiLd
defining the crime of aggression. Since no consensus hagk|x), and thus provided an excellent foundation for the
yetbeenreached, his delegation favoured the establishmggtijevement of an agreed definition which should cover
ofaworking group to make recommendations on the topig| forms of aggression. As for the role of the Security
and supported the idea of holding two sessions prior to ti@uncil, he shared the view expressed bythe representative
scheduled deadline of 30 June 2000 for the Completion(sffthe Islamic Repub”c of Iran that a mechanism was
the Preparatory Commission’s work. needed which guaranteed that role while simultaneously

55. Mr. Obeid (Syrian Arab Republic) said that heensuringthatperpetrators ofaggression did notescape trial
supported the establishment of the International Crimin@ving to the failure of the Council either to move
Court on the basis of the principle of universality of an@Xpeditiously or to reach a positive decision if the right of
taking into account the diverse cultural and lega/eto was exercised. Although the proposal made by the
backgrounds of those contributing towards it&epresentative of Cameroon was interesting, he cautioned
establishment. Itwas essential that the Court should be f@@ainst delay in reaching an early solution to the issues

of all political influences if it was to be fullyindependent'@ised by the crime of aggression. Moreover, the Court
and impartial. should be equally empowered with the Council to

etermine instances of aggression, experience having
56. The Rome Conference had been but the start of own that the Council did not always recognize such

process, and quality should not be sacrificed to time, sinlthe\St
. ) ances.
the work of the Preparatory Commission, particularly that
concerning the Rules of Procedure and Evidence, th8. Heexpressed satisfaction at the achievements ofthe
Elements of Crimes and the definition of the crime ofVorking Group on the Elements of Crimes relating to war

aggression, would be a major determining factor in tHgimes and said that most delegations, including his own,
attached special importance to identifying the elements of



A/C.6/54/SR.14

the war crime of the deportation or transfer of citizensgestraint that would be needed to make it a success. There
which was particularly relevantin the case ofthe occupiedas no need for a new forum which would merely echo the
Arab territories. The proposal submitted on that topic kpyolitical deliberations going on in other United Nations
Arab delegations (PCNICC/1999/WGEC/DP.25), whicforums. The onlyrationale for the creation of the Courtwas
had been widely welcomed, was consistent with thbat it should be an entirely new, non-politicized, type of
principles of both international law and internationabody.

humanitarian law. In his view, the crime consisted of onlys 1 opeid (Syrian Arab Republic), speaking in
two elements, namely the material and the moral, and 80\ ¢ise of the right of reply, said that his statement had
attempt toinclude other elements would deplete the Criffsrely been a factual description of the work done in the
of its meaning and depart from the letter and spirit of tr\freparatory Commission based on the principles of
Rome Statute. The transfer of citizens was arepugnant Walanational and customary law, including the Geneva
crime which flagrantly violated the principles ofcqnyentions of 1949 and humanitarian law. Any other
international humanitarian law and was not confined to the yication was an invention of the previous speaker which
occupied Arabterritories. It was purely alegal matter, angl gt to excuse the crimes of aggression and transfer
heregretted that discussion ofthe crime had been deferBeé%g committed daily by Israel in occupied territories in

until late in the previous session in an apparent attémptQ, syrian Arab Republic, Jordan and Lebanon and in the
pass it over and exert pressure on Arab State#paa .. pied Palestinian territories. His delegation was not
textthatwould serve the interests ofthe perpetrators of th, Bliticizing" but discussing the jurisdiction of the Court.

crime. In any event, the provisions of the Rome Statulg, e \yar crime of transfer of civilian populations had been
were now final and could not be amended to enable thg,ntifieqd as a serious crime not only by the Rome Statute
Qoyr_t to renderjudgemer_ns which suited certain States ai¢l /s by the Geneva Conventions — in other words, long
individuals to the exclusion of others. before Israel had committed such a crime. The progress of
60. Mr. Jeannet (Observer for the Internationalthe Middle East peace process was irrelevant to the work
Committee of the Red Cross (ICRC)) hoped that the Rométhe Preparatory Commission, and in any case had broken
Statute would be ratified by a large number of States addwn on account of Israel’'s stubbornness. The Rome
that they would refrain from exercising their right undeBtatute had been adopted and should remain intact.

the Statute to refuse the Court’s jurisdiction for a perio Mr. Diab (Lebanon), speaking in exercise of the

of seven yearsinrespect of war crimes allegedly committ Yt of reply, said he wished to reiterate that the Rome

by tr:gw nat'lonals o[jon tlhelr' terrgory. For its .parst, ICR(TS'[atute had been definitively adopted; the task athand was
would contmye to evelop |ts. efforts t.o asgst tat.es 13 describe the elements of the crimes it identified. The
adopting andimplementing national legislation pertaining;e of transfer of civilian populations, which Israel did

to the prosecution of war criminals in general and to t'Wot consider a heinous one, continued to be committed by

Rome Statute in particular. Israel in occupied Lebanese territory. Israeli actions had
61. The utmost attention should be paid to drafting th#daimed many victims and caused much suffering to the
Rules of Procedure and Evidence and the Elementsp&ople of Lebanon and had seriously damaged that
Crimes to ensure that they properly reflected existingpuntry’s economy. It was highly important to arrive at a
international humanitarian law. To that end, ICRC halégally acceptable defition of the crimes of aggression
prepared parts of an extensive study of relevaand transfer for use by the new International Criminal
international and national case law on the elements of w@ourt.

crimes. If caref_ullydrafted, the EIements_ of Crimes (?OUI§5. Ms. Efrat-Smilg (Israel), said she wished toreiterate
represent an important tool for ensuring the uniforfy, o+ the court should be a new kind of body, dedicated to

application of the law at both international and nationg],, o aims, not merely another forum in which to repeat
levels. Inthat connection, the highly constructive approaqne same political debates heard elsewhere.
shown by delegations boded well for the eventual adoption

of that instrument, which would undoubtedly assist th@6- Mr. Obeid (Syrian Arab Republic) said it was
judges of the Court. evident that Israel was afraid to allow the International

62 Ms. Efrat-Smilg (1 | King i ise of th Criminal Court to have jurisdiction over the crimes it was
o s. Efrat-smilg (Israel), speaking in exercise oft Lfcommitting in the occupied Arab territories.
right of reply, said that the statement by the representative

of the Syrian Arab Republic was a clear demonstration dh€ meeting rose at 5.30 p.m.
the dangers facing the Court and the extreme caution and



